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About Us

The Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation (TASCORP or the Corporation) was established under the 
Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation Act 1985. The functions and powers of TASCORP are detailed in 
Section 11 of the Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation Act 1985, as follows:

“To develop and implement borrowing and investment programmes for the benefit of participating 
authorities; and … to engage in such other activities relating to the finances of the Government of the 
State or participating authorities as are contemplated by this Act or approved by the Treasurer.”

In addition, the Corporation may with the approval of the Treasurer:

•	 Borrow money within or outside Australia;

•	 Lend money to participating authorities;

•	 Accept money on deposit or loan from the Treasurer or a participating authority;

•	 �Place on deposit with the Treasurer, a bank, or an authorised deposit-taking institution money held  
by the Corporation;

•	 Invest money held by the Corporation;

•	 �Issue, sell, purchase, pay off, repurchase, redeem, convert or otherwise deal in or with securities;

•	 �Appoint an authorised deposit-taking institution, or other person to act as underwriter, manager, 
trustee, or agent in connection with any transaction within or outside Australia;

•	 Enter into contracts of guarantee;

•	 Enter into any agreement or arrangement for the purpose of returning a gain, avoiding a loss, or with 
a view to avoiding a loss by reference to currency obligations, currency exchange rate movement or 
interest rate movement;

•	 �Enter into any agreement or arrangement for the purposes of managing or varying financial returns or 
financial or currency risks (including but not limited to risks arising from currency exchange rates or 
interest rates);

•	 �Enter into any agreement or arrangement of a kind not previously mentioned or acquire or incur any 
other rights or liabilities.

Highlights

Issued $3.39 BILLION  
fixed rate benchmark bonds

$126.4 MILLION Returns 
to the Tasmanian Government 

Made net profit before  
tax of $44.0 MILLION 

80% Employee 
Engagement Score 

88% Overall Client 
Satisfaction Rating 

Credit ratings: S&P AA+  
and Moodys Aa2 

$3.05 BILLION  
new and refinanced loans

kunanyi / Mt Wellington over Hobart 
Credit : Studio Hubert
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Statement of Corporate Intent 
2024-25 to 2027-28

Performance Agreement 

Introduction

This Statement of Corporate Intent (SCI) is a summary of the 2024-25 to 2027-28 Corporate Plan of the Tasmanian 
Public Finance Corporation (TASCORP) and includes a performance agreement between the Board of TASCORP and the 
Treasurer.

The performance agreement details the key financial and non-financial targets for TASCORP for 2024-25, as agreed 
between the Board and the Treasurer through the 2024 Corporate Planning process. It also includes financial and non-
financial estimates for the following three years.

The SCI has been prepared pursuant to Section 41 of the Government Business Enterprises Act 1995 and in accordance 
with the Ministerial Charter for TASCORP.

Principal Purpose

As outlined in its Ministerial Charter, the principal purpose of TASCORP is to develop and implement borrowing and 

investment programs for the benefit of the State.

Core Business

In accordance with its Act and the Ministerial Charter, and subject to the priorities and expectations of the Treasurer as 
advised from time to time, the core business of TASCORP is to:

•	 Raise funds in domestic and offshore capital markets;

•	 Lend the proceeds to its public sector clients;

•	 Offer deposit facilities to assist its public sector clients with their cash management activities;

•	 Provide financial risk management advisory services to its public sector clients and the State Government;

•	 Reinvest surplus funds in financial assets so as to achieve an acceptable risk/reward outcome; and

•	 Provide fund management services to the State of Tasmania.

Key Business Strategies

For the period 2024-25 to 2027-28, key business strategies for TASCORP are to:

•	 Provide high quality borrowing, investment and advisory services to our clients and deliver interest rates, terms and 
conditions more favourable than our clients can achieve themselves; 

•	 Effectively manage liquidity and our debt outstanding, to ensure that our clients’ current and future cash and liability 
management needs are met;

•	 Manage risks prudently by operating profitably within the agreed capital-at-risk limits and always overlaying a whole of 
State risk perspective on all strategies;

•	 Prudently manage the Mersey Community Hospital Fund on behalf of the State of Tasmania;

•	 Review TASCORP’s ability to provide more competitive deposit products to its broader client base as the wholesale 
investment market normalises; and

•	 Achieve and maintain high levels of employee engagement.

Key Limitations

•	 TASCORP’s cost of borrowing, and its access to debt capital markets, depends on the State’s credit rating over which the 
Corporation has no control;

•	 TASCORP’s economies of scale relative to other Australian States can also impact on its cost of borrowing and TASCORP 
has to maintain a high standard of communication about Tasmania’s and TASCORP’s market and funding activities; and

•	 TASCORP’s inability to compete with banks on client deposits. Unlike banks, client deposits are not the most economical 
source of funding to Central Financing Authorities.

This Performance Agreement sets out the key financial and non-financial targets for the  
2024-25 financial year. The tables below report TASCORP’s performance against its targets.

Financial Returns to Government Target 2024-25 Actual

TREASURY ACTIVITY

Dividends Paid ($m) 18.9 18.9

Tax Equivalents Paid ($m) 8.1 8.1

Total 27.0 27.0

MERSEY COMMUNITY HOSPITAL FUND

Dividends Paid ($m) 99.4 99.4

Financial Targets Target 2024-25 Actual

TREASURY ACTIVITY

Operating Profit before Tax ($m) 12.9 33.0

Operating Profit after Tax (NPAT) ($m) 9.0 23.1

Effective Capital Employed (ECE) ($m) 50.0 50.0

ROECE (%) – minimum 10% 18.0% 46.2%

MERSEY COMMUNITY HOSPITAL FUND

Operating Profit after Tax (NPAT) ($m) 9.5 11.0

Non-Financial Targets Target 2024-25 Actual

ECE Policy Breaches NIL NIL

WATM of Preferred Stock >3.5 yrs 6.06

Single Service Delivery Measure Target 2024-25 Actual

Overall client satisfaction rating 4.3 4.40

Definitions

ECE: Effective Capital Employed 
ROECE: Return on Effective Capital Employed 
WATM: Weighted Average Term to Maturity
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Chair and CEO’s Report
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On behalf of the Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation (TASCORP), we are pleased to present our  
Annual Report for the 2024-25 financial year. 

This past year was shaped by global economic uncertainty and geopolitical tensions, contributing to 
ongoing volatility in financial markets. Despite these challenges, Australia continued to be viewed as a 
relatively stable market for both domestic and offshore bond investors, and this confidence was reflected 
in the strong demand for TASCORP bonds. 

In alignment with our long-term funding strategy, TASCORP successfully issued an additional $3.39 
billion in term debt during the year. This funding has supported the Tasmanian Government and its 
entities in delivering essential community services and investing in critical infrastructure projects.  
This was achieved while delivering an operating profit after tax of $34.1 million.

Looking ahead, TASCORP’s balance sheet is expected to continue growing. With a small, skilled team 
of dedicated professionals, we are well positioned to provide high-quality funding and financial risk 
management services to Tasmanian Government entities.

Walking Track with Fagus 
Credit: Studio Hubert

Operating results

TASCORP’s core purpose is to develop, implement, and manage borrowing and investment programs 
that deliver long-term benefits to the people of Tasmania. To continue providing these services to 
a high standard, we have embedded a culture of continuous improvement across the organisation. 
This commitment is supported by targeted strategies to strengthen employee engagement, invest in 
modern technology, enhance risk management practices, and modernise our internal policies. These 
initiatives ensure TASCORP remains agile, resilient, and aligned with its strategic objectives.

In 2024-25, TASCORP reported an operating profit before tax of $44.0 million (2023–24: $40.1 
million) underpinned by prudent liquidity management delivered through timely market access 
and ensuring sufficient funding was available ahead of client requirements. TASCORP’s Treasury 
operations contributed $33.0 million, and the Mersey Community Hospital Fund $11.0 million towards 
the operating profit before tax result. Both these results compare favourably against the agreed 
Statement of Corporate Intent targets of $12.9 million and $9.5 million, respectively.

Chair and CEO’s Report 
(continued)
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YEAR-ON-YEAR CHANGE IN YIELD CURVE
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Operating results (continued)

The favourable operating result in TASCORP’s Treasury operations was driven by above target margin 
income in short-end liquidity management activities, and market value gains in longer-end liquidity 
management activities. The market value gains are primarily due to hedge positions on TASCORP 
bonds issued in advance of client requirements and invested in other peer bonds. TASCORP bonds 
underperformed relative to peers in 2024-25, as indicated by TASCORP spreads detailed in the chart below.

Chair and CEO’s Report 
(continued)

Investment approach

TASCORP’s financial outcomes for the year were positive, reflecting a prudent risk management 
approach of maintaining high credit quality and a low-risk balance sheet. To manage credit risk, 
TASCORP continues to invest in high-quality liquid assets at or above a BBB credit rating, as shown 
in the chart below.

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO BY CREDIT RATING

500

-

1,000

1,500

2,500

2,000

AAA

$
 M

IL
LI

O
N

S

A+ BBB A-1+ A-2

3,000

30-JUN-2430-JUN-25

AA+ AA AA- A A- BBB+ A-1

LONG-TERM SHORT-TERM

Chair and CEO’s Report 
(continued)
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Funding outcomes

Throughout 2024–25, TASCORP maintained a strong liquidity position and executed its term debt 
issuance program effectively. As in previous years, the strength of our liquidity profile was recognised 
by credit rating agencies in their assessment of Tasmania’s creditworthiness.

TASCORP successfully completed its 2024-25 issuance target of $3.39 billion, which included:

•	 A new $850 million benchmark bond maturing in 2036, extending the yield curve;

•	 A $600 million increase to the existing 2034 benchmark bond; and 

•	 $1,940 million of increases of various other existing benchmark bonds.

Both the benchmark 2034 and 2036 bond issuances were executed through syndicated deals, as 
TASCORP continues to access the market via both public and private trades to enhance liquidity 
support across its bond lines.

TASCORP’s full issuance profile is outlined in the chart below.
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Chair and CEO’s Report 
(continued)

TASCORP undertook its largest issuance of bonds into 
the debt capital markets in the 2024-25 financial year. 
In total, TASCORP successfully issued $3.39 billion of 
new bonds to support client borrowing requirements.

Bicheno Pier 
Credit: Adam Gibson
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CLIENT LENDING PORTFOLIO NET INTEREST MARGIN
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Client outcomes (continued)

Margin income from our client on-lending activities landed broadly in line with expectations. 
TASCORP’s growing balance sheet has meant that we have been able to leverage the efficiencies 
of scale and provide our clients with a lower cost of borrowing, as demonstrated in the below chart, 
highlighting a stable return in absolute dollar terms, but a lowering of net interest margin over the 
past five years.

Client outcomes

TASCORP’s total assets increased by $3.7 billion to $16.2 billion by financial year end, underpinned by 
new client lending (including re-financing activity) of $3.05 billion.

Similar to the 2023-24 financial year, the majority of new client advances were made to the General 
Government Sector with these advances rising by $1.7 billion to $6.0 billion during the year.

Chair and CEO’s Report 
(continued)

Chair and CEO’s Report 
(continued)
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Looking ahead

As we look to the future, TASCORP remains committed to delivering cost-effective funding and 
investment services that meet the evolving needs of Tasmanian Government entities. Maintaining 
investor confidence and a strong organisational culture will remain central to our strategy.

This year also marks a significant leadership transition as Tony Ferrall, our long-standing Chair, retired 
from the Board. On behalf of the team, we extend our sincere thanks for his unwavering commitment and 
leadership. Tony’s contribution has been instrumental in shaping TASCORP’s success and positioning the 
organisation for continued growth.

We also thank our stakeholders, investors, and staff for their ongoing support and dedication. Together, we 

look forward to another year of strong performance and meaningful impact.

Gary Swain		  Heath Baker

Chair			   Chief Executive Officer

Castle Rock 
Credit: Studio Hubert

Chair and CEO’s Report 
(continued)

Employee outcomes

Our team of highly capable people who have deep subject matter expertise are instrumental in the 
way we continue to deliver value to our clients, especially in periods of significant balance sheet 
growth, high job demand and ever evolving market conditions. Pleasingly our employee engagement 
survey results were positive again in 2025, reflecting the strength of our workplace culture and 
practice, including teamwork, integrity, respect and excellence.

Chair and CEO’s Report 
(continued)
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The ratings assigned to TASCORP’s various debt facilities by the two major credit rating agencies are: 

Moody’s Investors Service Standard and Poor’s 

Long-term domestic debt Aa2 AA+

Domestic commercial paper P-1 A-1+

Euro commercial paper P-1 A-1+

TASCORP Client Listing
During 2024-25, the following clients borrowed from and/or invested with TASCORP: 

Aurora Energy Pty Ltd

Break O’Day Council

Brighton Council	

Burnie City Council

Central Coast Council

Central Highlands Council

Clarence City Council

Department of Education

Department of Treasury and Finance

Derwent Valley Council

Dorset Council

Dulverton Regional Waste  
Management Authority

Flinders Council

Forest Practices Authority

George Town Council

Glamorgan – Spring Bay Council

Glenorchy City Council

Hobart City Council

Homes Tasmania

Huon Valley Council

Hydro Electric Corporation

Kentish Council

King Island Council

Kingborough Council

Latrobe Council

Launceston City Council

Legal Aid Commission

Marine and Safety Tasmania

Meander Valley Council

Metro Tasmania Pty Ltd

Northern Midlands Council

Port Arthur Historic Site  
Management Authority

Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens

Sorell Council

Southern Midlands Council

Southern Waste Solutions

State Fire Commission

Tasman Council

Tasmania Development and Resources

Tasmanian Convention Bureau

Tasmanian Irrigation Pty Ltd

Tasmanian Ports Corporation Pty Ltd

Tasmanian Railway Pty Ltd

Tasmanian Water & Sewerage 
Corporation Pty Ltd

Tasracing Pty Ltd

TasNetworks Pty Ltd

TT-Line Company Pty Ltd

Waratah – Wynyard Council

West Coast Council

West Tamar Council

To meet our client’s funding requirements and maintain ongoing sources of liquidity, TASCORP utilises  
three key funding programs:

•	 AUD Domestic Bond

•	 AUD Commercial Paper

•	 Euro Commercial Paper

Activity in each program is facilitated through dealer panel membership, with current details outlined below: 

Dealer Panel

A$15 BILLION DOMESTIC BOND

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited

Barrenjoey Markets Pty Limited

Citigroup Global Markets Australia Pty Ltd

Commonwealth Bank of Australia

Deutsche Bank AG

National Australia Bank

UBS AG

Westpac Banking Corporation

A$2.5 BILLION DOMESTIC COMMERCIAL PAPER

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited

Commonwealth Bank of Australia

National Australia Bank

Westpac Banking Corporation

US$2.5 BILLION EURO COMMERCIAL PAPER

Barclays Bank plc

Citibank International plc

UBS Limited

Issuing and Paying Agents

AUD Domestic Bond – Austraclear Limited Sydney

AUD Commercial Paper – Austraclear Limited Sydney

Euro Commercial Paper – Deutsche Bank AG Hong Kong

Credit Ratings Funding Programs
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Ms Sally Collier 

Director and Audit 
Committee Member

Sally Collier was appointed Director of TASCORP 
on 21 September 2021. Sally is an experienced 
Director with 20 years of investment banking 
and 10 years of asset management Executive 
experience. Formerly Executive Director of HSBC 
Investment Bank and Lehman Brothers, Sally has 
direct experience in the capital markets across 
Europe and Asia. Sally’s Non-Executive Director 
experience includes strategy reviews, equity and 
debt financing, membership of Remuneration, 
Audit and Risk, ESG and Investor Relations 
Committees. Sally is a current Director of Utilities 
of Australia Pty Ltd and is a Graduate of the 
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Mr Gary Swain

Chair and Audit  
Committee Member

Gary Swain was appointed a Director of TASCORP 
on 1 July 2024 and Chair on 3 June 2025. Gary 
was appointed as Secretary of the Department 
of Treasury and Finance in January 2024. Other 
previous appointments include a decade as 
Deputy Secretary, Transport and Infrastructure 
within the Tasmanian Government. Gary’s diverse 
Executive and Senior Management roles have 
involved public policy and regulatory functions, 
service delivery including major capital project 
delivery, and business improvement across 
a range of functional responsibilities. His 
professional training is in Economics and Asian 
Studies and he is a graduate of the University  
of Tasmania.

Mr David Sietsma 

Director and Audit  
Committee Member

David Sietsma was appointed Director of 
TASCORP on 20 May 2019. Formerly a General 
Manager in Group Treasury at the Commonwealth 
Bank of Australia, he has extensive banking 
experience in financial markets and investment 
management. He is a Graduate of the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors and provides 
treasury advice to large corporations. David is 
a current Director of Uniting Financial Services 
and Specialist Advisor (Investments) for the 
Superannuation Commission.

Mrs Sandra Birkensleigh 

Director and Audit  
Committee Chair

Sandra Birkensleigh was appointed Director of 
TASCORP on 30 September 2017. Formerly a 
partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers for 16 years, 
she has extensive experience as a Non-Executive 
Director. Currently her Board memberships 
include: MyState Limited and its subsidiaries 
(Chair), Horizon Oil Limited, Adore Beauty Limited, 
BBO Investments Pty Ltd (Chair), and Channel 
Investment Management Pty Ltd (Chair). Sandra 
is also currently the Deputy Chancellor of the 
University of the Sunshine Coast’s Council and 
Chair of its Audit and Risk Committee.

The TASCORP Board
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The Board of TASCORP and its senior management have a continuing commitment to improving core 
Board processes as outlined in the following statement of Corporate Governance Standards. 

Board’s Responsibilities

The Board’s role is to provide leadership and strategic guidance, to oversee TASCORP’s sound  
and prudent management, and the achievement of TASCORP’s objectives. The Board’s 
responsibilities include:

•	 Approving TASCORP‘s policies, annual report and financial statements;

•	 Overseeing organisational culture, values and behaviours;

•	 Overseeing risk management by ensuring that internal controls and reporting mechanisms are in 
place and approving the Enterprise-wide Risk Management Framework and associated risk policies;

•	 Assessing and determining whether to accept risks beyond the approval discretion given to 
management;

•	 Ensuring compliance with legal, tax and regulatory obligations;

•	 Approving the Statement of Corporate Intent, Corporate Plan and Business plan;

•	 Reviewing the Board and Audit Committee performance on an annual basis in accordance with the 
relevant Government Business guideline, with the last review completed in October 2024; and

•	 Annually, reviewing the CEO’s performance, with the last review completed in September 2024.

Annually the Directors review and acknowledge the TASCORP Code of Conduct and Workplace 
Behaviour policies. There were no departures from these policies in 2024-25.

Directors update the Register of Interests maintained by the Corporate Secretary as necessary. 
Where a Director has an interest that is deemed to be relevant to Board matters, it is declared, 
minuted and the Director takes no part in discussions on the issue.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the Non-Executive Directors and is chaired by Mrs S Birkensleigh. 
The Audit Committee meets as required and its objective is to provide assurance to the Board on 
TASCORP’s risk, control and compliance framework and, its external accountabilities. 

Corporate Governance Principles 

The Board has also reviewed the ASX Corporate Governance Council Principles and Recommendations, as 

well as the Government’s Guidelines for Tasmanian Government Businesses on the same and confirm that 

TASCORP does not depart from the ASX Principles.

Corporate Governance  
Standards

Executive Team

Heath Baker 

Chief Executive Officer 
Appointed March 2022

Andrew Freshney 

Chief Financial Officer 
Appointed February 2024

Fahim Chowdhury

Chief Financial Risk Officer 
Appointed July 2017

Emma Breward 

Senior Manager, Corporate 
Services and Governance 
Appointed November 2021

James Millen*

Senior Manager, Financial 
Markets and Client Services 
Appointed February 2022

        *James Millen occupied the role of Senior Manager, Financial Markets  
and Client Services until 20 June 2025.
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DIRECTOR Board Meetings Audit Committee Meetings 

Held Attended Held Attended

Tony Ferrall 11 11 6 5

Sandra Birkensleigh 12 12 6 6

Sally Collier 12 12 6 6

David Sietsma 12 12 6 6

Gary Swain 12 10 6 5

 
Board Tenures

The Directors of TASCORP during the financial year 2024-25 and details of their tenures are listed below:

Director Appointment Re-Appointment Term Expiration

Tony Ferrall 27 June 2013 4 June 2024 2 June 2025

Sandra Birkensleigh 30 September 2017 30 September 2023 30 September 2026

Sally Collier 21 September 2021 20 September 2024 20 September 2027

David Sietsma 20 May 2019 26 May 2025 26 May 2028

Gary Swain 1 July 2024 3 June 2025^ 3 June 2028

^Gary Swain was appointed as Chair on 3 June 2025 for a term of 3 years following the retirement of Tony Ferrall.

Governance Structure Health, Safety, and Wellbeing  
of Our Employees

TOTAL HEADCOUNT: 22

64%

36%

Female

Male

Part time

Full time

19%

81%

TASCORP Staff Profile
Employees at at 30 June 2025

TASCORP Staff Profile
Employees at at 30 June 2025
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Our People and Culture strategy is centred on fostering an engaged and inclusive workplace, where the unique 
talents of our people are harnessed to achieve the Corporation’s purpose and strategic objectives. The strategy 
inspires high performance and supports continuous learning and development. There are opportunities for our 
people to take part in future study, mentoring, attending industry conferences and webinars, cross training 
internally and we provide a suite of online learning programs.

At TASCORP, we live by our values which are: integrity, teamwork, excellence and respect. These values are 
embedded in our policies, practices and culture, underpinning all of our dealings and interactions. 

Culture is important to us at TASCORP. Engagement surveys are undertaken every two years, with the most 
recent survey conducted in May 2025. 

Overall, the 2025 employee engagement result was 80 percent, compared to 83 percent in 2023 and 66 percent 
in 2021. The continuation of a high engagement score reflects the success of a range of strategies and initiatives 
implemented at TASCORP over the last 4 years.

The health, safety and wellbeing of our people is a priority. We are committed to providing all employees with 
resources such as an employee assistance program and various culture, health, safety, and wellbeing initiatives. 
We also proactively manage and mitigate psychosocial hazards as well as fully supporting flexible working 
arrangements.

TASCORP is committed to building a diverse, equitable and inclusive workplace where everyone feels valued 
and respected. TASCORP has policies and initiatives in place to support this, including but not limited to, fair 
and equitable recruitment practices, flexible working arrangements, generous parental leave entitlements, DE&I 
awareness training, cultural awareness events, an employee feedback survey regarding DE&I, and regular gender 
pay gap analysis.

At TASCORP, we support and develop our people to thrive in a changing work environment. We strive to create a culture 
where everyone feels safe, respected and valued.
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TASCORP Organisational Chart  
(as at 30 June 2025)
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^David Loveless was promoted to the position of Senior Manager Financial Markets and Client Services effective from the 8th August 2025.
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Treasurer’s Instruction GBE 13-114-11 – Buy Local

Wherever possible TASCORP supports Tasmanian businesses by sourcing goods and services  
from local suppliers. The table below details TASCORP’s use of Tasmanian businesses and use  
of consultants for the financial year ended 30 June 2025. 

Purchases from Tasmanian businesses

% of purchases from Tasmanian Businesses 24%

Value of purchases from Tasmanian Businesses $1,506,600

CONSULTANCIES VALUED AT MORE THAN $50 000 (EX GST)

Name of consultant Location Description Period of 
engagement

Amount

Deloitte Touche 
Tohmatsu Melbourne/VIC

IT Network and 
Infrastructure Report 
for Cloud Migration 

Project

1 July 2024 to Oct 
2024 $79,456

Total $79,456

There were 4 consultants engaged for $50 000 or less totalling $58,419

Total Payment to Consultants $137,875

Treasurer’s Instruction GBE 13-114-09 – Payment of Accounts

TASCORP has an obligation to report its performance in respect of payment of accounts.  
The table below details TASCORP’s performance for the financial year ended 30 June 2025. 

Payment of Accounts

Creditor Days Paid the lesser of due date  
or 30 days

Number of accounts due for payment 954

Number of accounts paid on time 951

Amount due for payment $6,306,937

Amount paid on time $6,179,440

Number of payments for interest on overdue accounts Nil

Interest paid on overdue accounts Nil

Community Service Obligations (CSO)

TASCORP did not have or contribute to any CSO obligations in 2024-25.

Overseas Travel Guidelines

Heath Baker the CEO and James Millen the Senior Manager Financial Markets and Client Services 
undertook one international trip to Asia (Singapore and Japan) to promote and market TASCORP 
bonds and commercial paper to international investors. The total cost was $23,000.

Executive Remuneration Guidelines

The Corporation has complied with the Guidelines for Tasmanian Government Businesses - Director 
and Executive Remuneration.

Senior Executive remuneration is detailed in note 22 of the financial statements.

All staff, including Senior Management, undergo annual performance reviews. These include 
consideration of TASCORP’s overall performance, achievements against the Corporate and Business 
Plans, key performance indicators for the team and the individual.

Public Interest Disclosures Act 2002 – Section 86 – Reporting 
Requirements

�Procedures to comply with the requirements of the Public Interest Disclosures Act 2002 have been 
approved and are disclosed on TASCORP’s website.

�There were no reported or reportable disclosures under the Public Interest Disclosures Act during the 
financial year ended 30 June 2025.

Right To Information Act 2009 – Section 23 – Reporting Requirements

�The Corporation did not receive any application for assessed disclosure during the financial year 
ended 30 June 2025.

Integrity Commission Act 2009

TASCORP is committed to deliver “ethics and integrity in the public sector” and provides on-going 
training that is aligned to the Commission’s initiatives.

Public Sector Superannuation Reform Act 2016 – Section 55 
Superannuation Declaration

The CEO certifies that TASCORP has met its obligations under the Commonwealth’s Superannuation 
Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992 in respect of any employee who is a member of a complying 
superannuation scheme to which TASCORP contributes.

Legislative and Tasmanian 
Government Reporting  
Requirements
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Note 2024-25 
$M

2023-24 
$M

Interest revenue 5(a) 604.0 475.2

Less: Interest expense 5(a) (569.9) (434.4)

Net interest revenue 34.1 40.8

Net gains/(losses) arising from financial instruments 5(b) 19.0 7.8

Credit loss allowance 5(b) 0.1 0.1

Other revenue 5(c) 1.1 1.0

Net revenue from operations 54.3 49.7

Operational expenses 6 (10.3) (9.6)

Profit before income tax equivalent expense 44.0 40.1

Income tax equivalent expense 7 (9.9) (8.1)

Profit after income tax equivalent expense 34.1 32.0

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income 34.1 32.0

The total comprehensive income is attributable to the State of Tasmania as owner. 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note 2025 
$M

2024 
$M

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 8 394.2 183.9

Investments 9 3,720.3 3,203.4

Client advances 10 12,015.2 9,020.3

Asset derivative financial instruments 11 88.8 111.1

Receivables 16 0.2 0.3

Plant and equipment 17 1.6 1.9

Total assets 16,220.3 12,520.9

LIABILITIES

Payables 18 78.9 3.4

Current tax liabilities 7 9.9 8.1

Deposits 12 682.7 683.5

Borrowings 13 15,138.8 11,399.1

Liability derivative financial instruments 14 109.3 141.9

Provisions 19 0.6 0.6

Total liabilities 16,020.2 12,236.6

Net assets 200.1 284.3

EQUITY

MCH Fund 127.0 215.4

Treasury reserves 10.0 10.0

Treasury retained profits 63.1 58.9

Total equity 200.1 284.3

Total equity is attributable to the State of Tasmania as owner. 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The Corporation retains a General Reserve of $10.0 million, accumulated retained profits, to partially cover the 
risks associated with its role as the central financing authority for the State of Tasmania. 

On 29 June 2017, the Corporation received $730.4 million as an equity contribution from the Tasmanian 
Government for the purposes of establishing the Mersey Community Hospital (MCH) Fund (refer to note 1(d)).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

  MCH 
FUND TREASURY

$M

General  
reserve 

$M

Retained  
profits 

$M
Total 

$M

BALANCE AS AT 1 JULY 2023 298.4 10.0 55.4 363.8

Dividends paid (96.1) - (15.4) (111.5)

Profit for the year 13.1 - 18.9 32.0

Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 13.1 - 18.9 32.0

BALANCE AS AT 1 JULY 2024 215.4 10.0 58.9 284.3

Dividends paid (99.4) - (18.9) (118.3)

Profit for the year 11.0 - 23.1 34.1

Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 11.0 - 23.1 34.1

BALANCE AS AT 30 JUNE 2025 127.0 10.0 63.1 200.1

Statement of  
Changes in Equity
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2025

Statement of  
Financial Position
As at 30 June 2025
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Note 2024-25 
$M

2023-24 
$M

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest and other receipts 529.7 383.4

Interest and other payments (460.4) (282.0)

Payments to suppliers and employees (10.2) (9.4)

Income tax equivalent paid (8.1) (6.6)

51.0 85.4

(Increase)/decrease in operating assets

Client advances (2,633.7) (2,270.4)

Investments (581.1) 368.2

(3,214.8) (1,902.2)

Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities

Deposits (16.0) 1.9

Short-term borrowings 315.1 (165.2)

299.1 (163.3)

Net cash flow used in operating activities 20(c) (2,864.7) (1,980.1)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for purchase of plant and equipment  
and intangible assets - -

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment - -

Investments – MCH Fund 96.0 86.0

Net cash flow from investing activities 96.0 86.0

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of bonds 3,190.5 3,205.5

Repayment of bonds (93.2) (1,249.3)

Dividends paid (MCH Fund) (99.4) (96.1)

Dividends paid (Treasury) (18.9) (15.4)

Net cash flow from financing activities 2,979.0 1,844.7

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 210.3 (49.4)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 183.9 233.3

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 20(b) 394.2 183.9
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies

The Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation (TASCORP or the Corporation) was established under the Tasmanian 
Public Finance Corporation Act 1985. The Corporation operates in the Tasmanian public sector, providing 
borrowings; investments; debt and asset management services; and advisory services to the Tasmanian 
government, government business enterprises, state owned companies, local government councils, and other 
public entities (together called participating authorities).

The material accounting policies adopted in preparing these general purpose financial statements are stated 
hereafter to assist in the general understanding of these financial statements. The financial statements for the year 
ended 30 June 2025 were adopted by the Directors on 6 August 2025.

(a)	 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

These general purpose financial statements (referred to throughout this report as the financial statements) 
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Government Business Enterprises Act 1995 
and subject to compliance with the Treasurer’s Instructions, which included a requirement to comply with 
AASB 1004 Contributions rather than AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation in relation to the Mersey 
Community Hospital Fund, comply with Australian Accounting Standards and Australian equivalents of 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that are mandatory for periods beginning 1 July 2024 and 
other authoritative announcements and mandatory financial reporting requirements. The financial statements 
have been prepared on an accruals basis under the historical cost convention, with the majority of financial 
assets and liabilities, including derivative instruments, at fair value through profit and loss (refer notes 1(f) and 
1(h)).

(b)	 Adoption of new and revised accounting standards relevant to TASCORP

The Corporation has applied the required amendments to Standards and Interpretations that are relevant to 
its operations and effective for the first time for the financial year commencing 1 July 2024. No new or revised 
accounting standards mandatory for the year ended 30 June 2025 have had a significant impact on the 
Corporation’s financial statements.

(c)	  Translation of foreign currency transactions

The Corporation has financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. It is the Corporation’s 
policy to fully hedge the currency exposure from these types of assets and liabilities by entering into either 
cross-currency swaps or forward foreign exchange contracts.

Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are converted at the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction. Foreign currency receivables and payables at balance date are translated at exchange rates at 
that date.

All exchange gains and losses are brought to account in the profit or loss.

Notes to and Forming Part 
of the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2025

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2025

TASCORP ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025 33 TASCORP ANNUAL REPORT 2024-202532 



(d)	 Mersey Community Hospital Fund

On 29 June 2017, in accordance with the Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation Amendment (Mersey Community 
Hospital) Act 2017 (the Legislation), $730.4 million was transferred to the Corporation from the Public Account to 
establish the Mersey Community Hospital Fund (the MCH Fund). Treasurer’s Instruction GBE 08-052-09P directs the 
Corporation to present the transfer as an equity contribution in line with the form in which it was legislated: treat 
the contribution as a non-reciprocal transfer for the purpose of AASB 1004 Contributions and not the definition of a 
liability in AASB 132 Financial Instruments  Presentation. 

(e)	 Lump Sum Dividend and Income Tax Equivalent Regime

Treasurer’s Instruction GBE 13-114-06P Lump Sum Dividend and Income Tax Equivalent Regime (LSDITER) states 
that the Corporation will make its lump sum payment into the Tasmanian Government’s Public Account. The lump 
sum payment each financial year includes: the Corporation’s income tax equivalent liability for the preceding financial 
year; and the Corporation’s dividend payment relating to the preceding financial year, as approved by the Treasurer 
under s.84 of the Government Business Enterprises Act 1995. The LSDITER Liability excludes any returns in relation 
to the MCH Fund.

		 Income tax

		� Under the LSDITER, the tax equivalent is calculated by applying the company tax rate, as prescribed by the 
Income Tax Rates Act 1986, to the Corporation’s accounting profit before taxation, as determined by the 
Australian Accounting Standards, excluding any returns from the MCH Fund.

		 Dividends

		� The Corporation pays dividends in accordance with the LSDITER whereby the Corporation makes dividend 
payments equal to the difference between the Corporation’s recommended total lump sum liability and its 
income tax liability for the preceding year. The taxation equivalents and dividends paid under this regime in 
2024-25 were $8.1 million and $18.9 million respectively (2023-24: $6.6 million and $15.4 million).

		� In addition to the amount paid under the LSDITER, the Corporation, in accordance with the Legislation paid  
$99.4 million on 13 June 2025 with respect to the MCH Fund (2023-24: $96.1 million).

(f)	 Financial assets and liabilities

Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities are recognised on trade date, i.e. the date on which the 
Corporation commits to purchase or sell the asset or liability with unsettled investments and borrowings recognised 
on the Statement of Financial Position. However, refinanced Client Advances are only shown on the Statement of 
Financial Position from date of drawdown. 

		 i)  Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

		� The business model is to hold the financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and those cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest. The Corporation includes in this category: investments 
relating to the MCH Fund (see Note 9), loans to clients funded by equity and the 2046 bond (see Notes 10 and 
13).

		 ii)  Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

		� The Corporation irrevocably designates all other financial assets and financial liabilities to be at FVTPL where 
they are managed on a market value basis and where it eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mis-
match. Changes in fair value are taken to the profit or loss.

		� Transaction costs are recognised as an expense when incurred with the exception of those associated with 
2046 funding, which are amortised over the life of the transaction.

NOTE 1: Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

(g)	 Impairment

	Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for impairment with an ‘expected 
credit loss’ (ECL) model.

	The Corporation accounts for expected credit losses and changes in those credit losses at each reporting date 
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial assets. The Corporation measures the 
loss allowance on a financial instrument at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL. However, if the credit risk on a 
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Corporation measures the loss over the life of 
the assets’ expected credit loss. The ECL is calculated on an individual basis.

	The Corporation uses a number of indicators to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk 
including market conditions, the lifetime expected loss of the whole portfolio of investment class compared to 
origination and the individual instrument.

	The ECL is calculated as below:

	ECL = exposure at default (EAD) * probability of default (PD) * loss given default (LGD) where

		 • � EAD – the estimated outstanding amount of credit exposure at the time of default

		 • � PD – the probability a counterparty defaults

		 •  LGD – an estimate of the loss arising on default

	Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit loss that will result over the life of the financial asset.

	The 12-month ECL is the portion of the Lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events within 12 months 
from the reporting date.

	Financial assets are assessed for any credit deterioration since origination with any such deterioration assessed as 
significant or not. 

(h)	 Derivative financial instruments

	Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the transaction is committed to and are subsequently  
re-measured to their fair value. Any change in fair value is recognised through the profit or loss.

(i)	 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

	The Corporation derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or when it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. 
Similarly, the Corporation derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Corporation’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

(j)	  Plant and equipment and leasehold improvements

Plant and equipment comprising office furniture and equipment, computer systems, and vehicles are depreciated 
over their estimated useful lives, ranging from 3 to 10 years, on a straight-line basis. Leasehold improvements are 
depreciated over the remaining period of the lease.

(k)	 Right of use assets and lease liabilities

All leases, other than short-term leases of low value assets, are recognised on balance sheet as lease liabilities 
and right-of-use assets. On initial recognition the carrying amount of the lease liability is measured at the present 
value of the current leasing commitment. Lease payments are discounted at the rate implicit in the lease or at the 
entity’s incremental borrowing rate.
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(l)	 Employee benefits

Employee entitlements for salary accruals, superannuation, annual and long service leave outstanding at balance 
date are calculated in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits. The Corporation makes contributions on 
behalf of employees to employee contributory superannuation funds in accordance with the Commonwealth’s 
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. The Corporation provides for long service leave in respect 
of all employees, based on the present value of the estimated future cash outflow to be made resulting from 
employees’ services up to the balance date, and having regard to the probability that employees as a group 
will remain in the Corporation’s employ for the period of time necessary to qualify for long service leave. The 
Corporation uses market yields on high quality bonds to discount its long service leave provision as required by 
AASB 119.

(m)	 Creditors

Creditors are recognised when the Corporation becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase 
of assets or services. The carrying amount approximates the fair value, as creditors are generally settled within 
thirty days.

(n)	 Cash flows

For the year ended 30 June 2025, cash equivalents for the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows comprised 
operating cash, investments at call and highly liquid short-term securities (original maturity less than 3 months) for 
the Corporation’s Treasury business.

(o)	 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Corporation and the 
revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Sale of financial instruments

�Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial instrument have 
passed to the buyer and can be measured reliably. Risks and rewards are considered passed to the buyer at 
the time of the conclusion of the trade commitment.

Interest

�Revenue and expense is recognised for all financial assets and liabilities as interest accrues using the 
effective interest method, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

�Derivative interest receipts and payments are accrued on a net basis and classified as interest revenue or 
interest expense. This includes up front payments/receipts on interest rate swaps and forward points on 
foreign exchange contracts used to manage the interest rate or currency exposure of the financial assets and 
liabilities.

�Change in market value

�The movements in the market value of the fair valued financial assets, liabilities and derivative instruments are 
recognised as gains or losses in the profit or loss in the period in which the change in market value occurs.

(p)	 Rounding

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest hundred thousand Australian dollars unless otherwise stated.

NOTE 1: Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

(q)  New and amended accounting standards issued but not yet effective 

AASB 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements was issued in June 2024 and replaces AASB 101 
Presentation of Financial Statements and will be effective for the Corporation from 1 July 2027. AASB 18 introduces 
enhanced presentation requirements in the financial statements. The Corporation is currently assessing the impact 
of this new Standard. 

There are no other new standards or amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective which are 
expected to have a material impact on The Corporation’s financial statements. The Corporation has not early 
adopted any new accounting standards.

(r) Other accounting developments

Australian climate-related financial disclosures legislation received Royal Assent in September 2024, under the 
Treasury Laws Amendment (Financial Market Infrastructure and Other Measures) Act 2024 (“Act”). Following the 
Act’s enactment, the AASB introduced the first set of Australian Sustainability Reporting Standards (ASRS). These 
standards include:

AASB S1 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information:

A voluntary standard that provides entities with a framework for disclosing sustainability-related financial 
information in a consistent and comparable manner.

AASB S2 Climate-related Disclosures:

A mandatory standard requiring entities to disclose detailed information about their governance, strategy, risk 
management, and metrics and targets related to climate-related risks and opportunities. 

The Corporation is currently assessing the impact of adopting these new standards, our requirements to do so,  
as well as the timing of potential adoption required. 
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Note 2: Significant accounting judgements and estimations

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through the profit or loss is estimated 
for recognition and measurement purposes or for disclosure purposes.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance date.  
The quoted market price used for the Corporation’s traded financial assets and financial liabilities is the current market 
mid price which is the standard pricing convention used by market participants.

The fair value of a financial instrument that is not traded in an active market is determined using the market accepted 
valuation technique for the instrument concerned, or net present value where no market convention exists. The 
Corporation uses assumptions that are based on the way the asset or liability was priced when it was acquired and 
market conditions existing at balance date. These assumptions at balance date were:

•	 Dealer market quotes for similar instruments or dealer market price assessments were used for valuing long-term 
illiquid investments. In general, the Corporation eliminates the high and low quote or assessment and averages the 
remainder to value the instrument. In a small number of cases, there may be fewer than three quotes or assessments 
available. In such cases all the quotes or assessments received are included in the calculation of the value.

•	 The fair value of client advances designated at fair value through profit or loss is calculated at a margin relative 
to the TASCORP yield curve. The margin is the difference between the relevant client loan yield and the TASCORP 
yield curve at the time the loan was written. The fair value of a swap contract (interest rate or foreign exchange) is 
calculated using market accepted valuation techniques to discount future cash flows using mid-point market yields 
and/or exchange rates appropriate to the instrument. The fair value of a forward exchange contract is determined 
using mid-point forward exchange market rates at the balance date.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured at fair value through the profit or 
loss, grouped into 3 levels based on the degree to which the fair value is observable. 

•	 Level 1 – derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

•	 Level 2 – derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or  
liability, either directly (ie. as price) or indirectly (ie. derived from prices). 

•	 Level 3 – derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 
observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

30 June 2025 Level 1 
$M

Level 2 
$M

Level 3 
$M

Total 
$M

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 204.8 189.4 - 394.2

Investments 613.8 2,978.8 - 3,592.6

Client advances - 11,914.4 - 11,914.4

Derivatives - 88.8 - 88.8

Total assets 818.6 15,174.4 - 15,990.0

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Deposits 1.1 681.6 - 682.7

Commercial paper - 2,193.4 - 2,193.4

Fixed rate bonds* 12,105.0 235.1 - 12,340.1

Floating rate notes - 501.2 - 501.2

Other bonds - 3.3 - 3.3

Derivatives - 109.3 - 109.3

Total liabilities 12,106.1 3,723.9 - 15,830.0

30 June 2024 Level 1 
$M

Level 2 
$M

Level 3 
$M

Total 
$M

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 145.7 38.2 - 183.9

Investments 505.9 2,476.3 - 2,982.2

Client advances - 8,919.5 - 8,919.5

Derivatives - 111.1 - 111.1

Total assets 651.6 11,545.1 - 12,196.7

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Deposits - 683.5 - 683.5 

Commercial paper - 1,948.5 - 1,948.5

Fixed rate bonds 8,843.6 - - 8,843.6

Floating rate notes - 503.0 - 503.0

Other bonds - 3.2 - 3.2

Derivatives - 141.9 - 141.9

Total liabilities 8,843.6 3,280.1 - 12,123.7 

*All fixed rate bond fair values are derived from direct quoted prices from active markets with the exception of 
non benchmark lines.
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Note 3: Financial instruments and risk management

The operations of the Corporation give rise to various risks which are generally reflected in the market value of the 
Corporation’s assets and liabilities.

(a) 	 Capital at risk

The Corporation allocates an appropriate level of capital to each identified risk: credit risk, market risk and 
operational risk, and manages these risks within an overall capital limit agreed with the Treasurer from time to time. 
The effective level of risk exposure of the Corporation is required at all times to be kept within the capital limit. 
Capital is allocated to categories of risk in line with accepted industry practice.

(b) 	 Credit risk

Credit risk arises from (i) the change in fair value of credit exposure to a counterparty or group of counterparties 
due to a change in the market perception of the credit quality of that exposure, and (ii) the potential for credit 
default, i.e. the possibility that the counterparty to a financial instrument will not adhere to the terms of the 
contract when payment is due. The Corporation is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of non-
performance by counterparties to derivative financial instruments.

The Corporation enters into derivative transactions governed under International Swaps and Derivatives 
Association (ISDA) Master Agreements. When a credit default occurs, all outstanding transactions under an ISDA 
agreement are terminated. The termination value is determined and only a single net amount is payable to/
receivable from a counterparty in settlement of all transactions. The Corporation does not have any master netting 
arrangements where a default event has occurred, and has therefore presented all derivative financial instruments 
on a gross basis in the Statement of Financial Position. The Corporation also has Credit Support Annexes (CSAs) in 
place with the majority of its ISDA agreements. The CSA defines the terms or rules under which collateral is lodged 
with counterparties, subject to agreed market thresholds. The Corporation may be required to place cash with or 
receive cash from market counterparties to mitigate the credit risk arising from the derivative transactions.

There is no impairment for bad and doubtful debts. No bad debts have been recorded in the current year or 
previous year.

		 i)  Changes in fair value attributable to credit risk

		� AASB 7  Financial Instruments  Disclosures requires the disclosure of the amount of change in the fair value of 
a loan or receivable (or group of loans or receivables) that is attributable to changes in the credit risk and the 

financial liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk.	

		 The change in fair value attributable to changes in credit risk was calculated by determining the difference in    	
	 the net present value of the relevant cash flows at the end of each period between using the Overnight 		
	 Indexed Swap curve and the market yield curves used in the financial statements.

The cumulative change in fair value attributable to changes in credit risk as at the respective  
year ends are:

2025 
$M

2024 
$M

Investments 43.8 22.8

Client advances 626.6 314.8

670.4 337.6

Financial liabilities (656.2) (332.5)

Net cumulative gain/(loss) 14.2 5.1

		

		 ii)  Credit default exposure

Investments

		� The Corporation’s current credit risk policies require all investments to have a credit rating no less than 
Investment Grade (by Moody’s or Standard and Poor’s ratings). These limits are monitored by management with 
compliance reported to the Board. The carrying value of these investments represents the maximum exposure 
to credit default risk.

		 Client advances

		� Section 11 of the Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation Act 1985, states that one of the functions of the 
Corporation is to provide loans to participating authorities. The Corporation considers that the creditworthiness 
of its client advances, other than advances to local government, and the Tasmanian Water and Sewerage 
Corporation Pty Ltd (refer note 10), is derived from the credit rating of the State of Tasmania.

		� The carrying value of the client advances (refer note 10) together with the committed standby facilities to clients 
(refer note 15(b)) represents the maximum exposure to credit default risk.

		 Derivatives

		� The credit exposure of currency swaps, interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts is 
represented by the net fair value of all contracts with a positive replacement cost reduced by the effect of 
netting agreements.
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		 iii) Concentration of credit risk by credit rating

		 The following table details the credit rating of the Corporation’s primary financial assets excluding 		
	 transactions with participating authorities. The amounts shown reflect their credit exposure.

 

LONG-TERM CREDIT RATING SHORT-TERM CREDIT RATING

30 June 2025 AAA 
$M

AA+/AA/AA- 
$M

A+/A/A- 
$M

BBB+/
BBB 

$M

A-1+ 
$M

A-1 
$M

A-2 
$M

Total 
$M

Cash and cash 
equivalents, 
Investments

174.9 1,296.5 8.5 - 2,561.1 63.7 9.9 4,114.6

12-month credit 
loss allowance (0.0) (0.1) - - - - - (0.1)

Lifetime credit 
loss allowance - - - - - - - -

Interest rate 
swaps - 35.0 0.8 - - - - 35.8

Foreign exchange 
contracts - - 9.7 - - - - 9.7

174.9 1,331.4 19.0 - 2,561.1 63.7 9.9 4,160.0

LONG-TERM CREDIT RATING SHORT-TERM CREDIT RATING

30 June 2024 AAA 
$M

AA+/AA/AA- 
$M

A+/A/A- 
$M

BBB+/
BBB 

$M

A-1+ 
$M

A-1 
$M

A-2 
$M

Total 
$M

Cash and cash 
equivalents, 
Investments

257.3 1,100.4 22.5 - 1,891.6 61.2 54.5 3,387.5

12-month credit 
loss allowance (0.1) (0.0) (0.0) (0.1) - - - (0.2)

Lifetime credit 
loss allowance (0.0) - - (0.0) - - - (0.0)

Interest rate 
swaps - 37.5 1.4 - - - - 38.9

Foreign exchange 
contracts - 6.1 - - - - - 6.1

257.2 1,144.0 23.9 (0.1) 1,891.6 61.2 54.5 3,432.3

 

		 iv)  Collateral note

The following tables present the gross and net amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities as 
presented on the Statement of Financial Position, after applying master netting agreements and cash 
collateral provided. The column “Net amount” shows the impact on the Corporation’s Statement of 
Financial Position if all existing rights of offset were exercised.

 

RELATED AMOUNTS NOT OFFSET

30 June 2025

Gross and net amounts  
presented in the 

Statement  
of Financial Position 

$M

Amounts subject 
to Master Netting 

Agreements which 
are not currently 

enforceable 
$M

Cash  
collateral 

$M

Net  
amount 

$M

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Derivatives with CSA 
counterparties 21.1 1.5 1.1 2.6

Derivatives non CSA 
counterparties 67.7 66.1 - 66.1

88.8 67.6 1.1 68.7

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Derivatives with CSA 
counterparties 107.7 88.1 (88.9) (0.8)

Derivatives non CSA 
counterparties 1.6 - - -

109.3 88.1 (88.9) (0.8)

 
CSAs are in place for all active market counterparties.

NOTE 3: Financial instruments and risk management (continued)
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RELATED AMOUNTS NOT OFFSET

30 June 2024

Gross and net amounts  
presented in the 

Statement  
of Financial Position 

$M

Amounts subject 
to Master Netting 

Agreements which 
are not currently 

enforceable 
$M

Cash  
collateral 

$M

Net  
amount 

$M

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Derivatives with CSA 
counterparties 28.2 0.2 - 0.2

Derivatives non CSA 
counterparties 82.9 81.2 - 81.2

111.1 81.4 - 81.4

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Derivatives with CSA 
counterparties 140.2 112.2 (114.0) (1.8)

Derivatives non CSA 
counterparties 1.7 - - -

141.9 112.2 (114.0) (1.8)

 
CSAs are in place for all active market counterparties. 

(c) 	 Interest rate risk

The Corporation enters into various types of interest rate contracts in managing its interest rate risk.

		 i)  Interest rate swaps

		� Under interest rate swaps, the Corporation agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals, the 
difference between fixed rate and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to agreed notional 
principal amounts. The Corporation’s operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent 
that there is a difference between the timing and amount of interest earning assets and the timing and amount 
of interest bearing liabilities that mature or re-price in specified periods. Interest rate swaps are held or issued for 
the purpose of managing this interest rate risk. The net fair value of interest rate swaps is presented in notes 11 
and 14.

		 ii)  Interest rate options

		� Interest rate options are contracts that allow the holder of the option the right but not the obligation to purchase 
or sell a financial instrument at a specified price and within a specified period. As a matter of policy, all options 
granted to clients are hedged by purchasing the same option in the financial markets. As at balance date, the 
Corporation did not have any outstanding interest rate options (30 June 2024: $nil).

	

NOTE 3: Financial instruments and risk management (continued)
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NOTE 3: Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

	(iii) Interest rate exposure

      Exposure to interest rate risk, the re-pricing profile of maturities and the effective interest rates by type 	
      of financial instrument at 30 June 2025 were:

CONTRACTUAL MATURITIES

2025

Weighted 
average 

effective 
interest 

rate
%

Floating 
interest 

rate
$M

Less  
than 3 

months
$M

3 to 6 
months

$M

6 to 12 
months

$M

1 to 2 
years

$M

2 to 5 
years

$M

Over 5 
years

$M
Total

$M

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash 
equivalents 3.77 204.7 189.5 - - - - - 394.2

Investments 4.40 1,014.2 1,239.8 579.3 264.8 13.5 38.6 570.1 3,720.3

Client 
advances 4.06 0.1 212.1 45.9 902.3 369.9 3,041.1 7,443.8 12,015.2

4.11 1,219.0 1,641.4 625.2 1,167.1 383.4 3,079.7 8,013.9 16,129.7

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Deposits 4.18 682.7 - - - - - - 682.7

Borrowings* 3.92 707.2 1,305.6 683.3 1,357.3 1.5 3,422.3 7,661.6 15,138.8

3.93 1,389.9 1,305.6 683.3 1,357.3 1.5 3,422.3 7,661.6 15,821.5

Net (170.9) 335.8 (58.1) (190.2) 381.9 (342.6) 352.3 308.2

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS

Interest rate swaps (notional principal)

Net 
derivatives (874.6) 340.0 15.0 262.0 (209.9) 524.6 (57.1) -

Net position (1,045.5) 675.8 (43.1) 71.8 172.0 182.0 295.2 308.2

 
*Effective interest rate includes the net interest rates of the forward foreign exchange contracts. Borrowings includes 
both short-term (commercial paper) and long-term (fixed and floating rate bond) instruments.

	Exposure to interest rate risk, the re-pricing profile of maturities and the effective interest rates by type of 
financial instrument at 30 June 2024 were:

CONTRACTUAL MATURITIES

2024

Weighted 
average 

effective 
interest 

rate
%

Floating 
interest 

rate
$M

Less  
than 3 

months
$M

3 to 6 
months

$M

6 to 12 
months

$M

1 to 2 
years

$M

2 to 5 
years

$M

Over 5 
years

$M
Total

$M

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash 
equivalents 4.40 145.7 38.2 - - - - - 183.9

Investments 4.73 1,098.1 667.4 823.9 76.8 51.6 95.6 390.0 3,203.4

Client advances 3.62 0.1 180.6 111.1 338.0 922.6 1,566.8 5,901.1 9,020.3

3.82 1,243.9 886.2 935.0 414.8 974.2 1,662.4 6,291.1 12,407.6

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Deposits 4.06 683.5 - - - - - - 683.5

Borrowings* 3.56 503.2 889.4 1,059.0 - 1,359.6 1,426.2 6,161.7 11,399.1

3.59 1,186.7 889.4 1,059.0 - 1,359.6 1,426.2 6,161.7 12,082.6

Net 57.2 (3.2) (124.0) 414.8 (385.4) 236.2 129.4 325.0

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS

Interest rate swaps (notional principal)

Net 
derivatives (669.0) 125.0 138.5 (286.6) 527.8 116.5 47.8 -

Net position (611.8) 121.8 14.5 128.2 142.4 352.7 177.2 325.0

	  
*Effective interest rate includes the net interest rates of the forward foreign exchange contracts. Borrowings includes 
both short-term (commercial paper) and long-term (fixed and floating rate bond) instruments.
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(d)	  Foreign exchange risk

The following table shows the Corporation’s foreign currency exposure by currency as at 30 June 2025 (all 
amounts denominated in Australian dollars):

						    

EUR
$M

HKD
$M

Assets/(liabilities) (< 12 months) (35.9) (206.3)

Forward FX (< 12 months) 35.9 206.3

Net position (< 12 months) - -

Assets/(liabilities) (> 12 months) - -

Forward FX (> 12 months) - -

Net position (> 12 months) - -

Net position - -

The following table shows the Corporation’s foreign currency exposure by currency as at 30 June 2024 (all 
amounts denominated in Australian dollars):	

EUR 
$M

HKD
$M

Assets/(liabilities) (< 12 months) - -

Forward FX (< 12 months) - -

Net position (< 12 months)  -   -

Assets/(liabilities) (> 12 months)  -   -

Forward FX (> 12 months)  -   -

Net position (> 12 months)  -   -

Net position  -   -

(e)	 Liquidity risk

The Corporation has a liquidity policy requiring the holding of sufficient liquid investments, which are readily 
saleable and convertible into cash, to safeguard against a short-term inability to issue debt.

Historical experience has shown that while deposits from clients have short-term maturities, a percentage 
of the deposits are core investments by clients, which are continuously re-invested with the Corporation.

Daily, the Corporation monitors a number of prudential measures including:

Liquidity Coverage Ratio

The level of High Quality Liquid Assets should be adequate to meet the liquidity needs for a 30 day period 
under a severe stress scenario – monitored daily.

The Corporation’s High Quality Liquid Assets comprise A-1+ Discount Securities and recognised high grade 
financial institution and government liquid assets. These liquid assets are discounted consistent with APRA 
Required Stable Funding Factors.

The table below shows the daily minimum, maximum and average High Quality Liquid Assets for 2024-25.

HQLA - High Quality Liquid Asset

Minimum Maximum Average

209% 501% 302%

Ratio of Long Dated Liabilities to Term Client Loans

The level of long dated liabilities must be no less than 95% of the level of client loans other than for working 
capital – monitored daily.

Minimum Maximum Average

106% 110% 108%

 
In addition to holding of liquid assets, the Corporation maintains an intra-day credit accommodation facility 
of $100 million (2024: $100 million) with a bank.

NOTE 3: Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

TASCORP ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025 49 TASCORP ANNUAL REPORT 2024-202548 



The maturity profile of the Corporation’s financial assets, liabilities and derivatives based on contracted 
undiscounted payment obligations and receivables at 30 June 2025 was: 

Less 
than 3 

months 
$M

3 to 6 
months 

$M

6 to 12 
months 

$M

1 to 2 
years 

$M

2 to 5 
years 

$M

Over 5 
years 

$M
Total 

$M

FINANCIAL ASSETS (UNDISCOUNTED RECEIVABLES)

Cash and cash 
equivalents 394.2 - - - - - 394.2

Investments 1,203.9 773.5 341.5 250.0 712.9 800.2 4,082.0

Client advances 439.1 60.0 1,143.3 821.6 4,298.5 8,735.6 15,498.1

2,037.2 833.5 1,484.8 1,071.6 5,011.4 9,535.8 19,974.3

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (UNDISCOUNTED REPAYMENT OBLIGATIONS)

Deposits 682.7 - - - - - 682.7

Borrowings 1,779.3 735.4 1,571.3 414.5 5,150.4 9,190.2 18,841.1

2,462.0 735.4 1,571.3 414.5 5,150.4 9,190.2 19,523.8

Net (424.8) 98.1 (86.5) 657.1 (139.0) 345.6 450.5

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS UNDISCOUNTED RECEIVABLES/(PAYABLES)

Interest rate swaps 3.3 (4.3) (4.0) (8.7) (8.8) (1.4) (23.9)

Foreign exchange (10.7) (0.1) - - - - (10.8)

Guarantees * (287.7) - - - - - (287.7)

(295.1) (4.4) (4.0) (8.7) (8.8) (1.4) (322.4)

	  
* The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts the Corporation could be 
required to settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty 
to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Corporation considers that it is more 
likely than not that no amount will be payable under these arrangements.

The maturity profile of the Corporation’s financial assets, liabilities and derivatives based on contracted 
undiscounted payment obligations and receivables at 30 June 2024 was: 	

Less 
than 3 

months 
$M

3 to 6 
months 

$M

6 to 12 
months 

$M

1 to 2 
years 

$M

2 to 5 
years 

$M

Over 5 
years 

$M
Total 

$M

FINANCIAL ASSETS (UNDISCOUNTED RECEIVABLES)

Cash and cash 
equivalents 183.9 - - - - - 183.9

Investments 744.7 793.0 233.8 259.2 71.8 737.1 2,839.6

Client advances 339.9 123.7 506.0 1,272.6 2,440.6 7,204.6 11,887.4

1,268.5 916.7 739.8 1,531.8 2,512.4 7,941.7 14,910.9

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (UNDISCOUNTED REPAYMENT OBLIGATIONS)

Deposits 683.5 - - - - - 683.5

Borrowings 1,044.9 1,077.7 152.6 1,674.7 2,195.1 7,674.1 13,819.1

1,728.4 1,077.7 152.6 1,674.7 2,195.1 7,674.1 14,502.6

Net (459.9) (161.0) 587.2 (142.9) 317.3 267.6 408.3

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS UNDISCOUNTED RECEIVABLES/(PAYABLES)

Interest rate swaps (3.3) (0.7) (11.4) (7.9) (9.0) (1.6) (33.9)

Foreign exchange 0.0 - - - - - 0.0

Guarantees * (295.7) - - - - - (295.7)

(299.0) (0.7) (11.4) (7.9) (9.0) (1.6) (329.6)

	  
* The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts the Corporation could be 
required to settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty 
to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Corporation considers that it is more 
likely than not that no amount will be payable under these arrangements. 

NOTE 3: Financial instruments and risk management (continued)
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(f) 	 Value at Risk (VaR) analysis

The Corporation uses a VaR model to measure the market risk exposures inherent in the balance sheet. VaR, 
calculated daily, is an estimate of the potential loss from the Corporation’s risk positions over a given holding 
period with a certain confidence level.

The Corporation requires that it maintains sufficient capital to cover its exposure to market risk, credit risk 
and operational risk. Market risk capital exposure is measured by VaR and calculated on the following basis:  
historical simulation, rates and margins data back 5 years, a 10-day holding period (extended to 30 days 
for investment credit margin risk, excluding semi government securities) and a 99% percentile one tailed 
confidence level is used.	

The VaR model’s reliability is verified by back-testing the results of the model to actual results.

Stress testing is used to add insight to the possible outcomes under abnormal market conditions. The stress 
testing methodology assumes that all market factors move adversely at the same time and that no actions 
are taken during the stress events to mitigate risk, and consequently reflects the decline in liquidity that 
frequently accompanies market shocks.

The Corporation’s VaR over the year is disclosed in the following table:

2024-25  
$M

2023-24  
$M

Year End 5.1 5.1

Average 5.0 4.6

Maximum 5.9 6.1

Minimum 4.2 3.6

	  
The table reflects the Corporation’s balance sheet position as at 30 June 2025: the maximum potential loss 
expected over a 10 day period is $5.1 million, with a 1% probability that this maximum may be exceeded. The 
average VaR over the year was $5.0 million.

Note 4: Operating segments

The Corporation has two operating segments:

Treasury

The principal purpose of the Treasury segment is to develop, implement and manage borrowing and investment 
programs for the benefit of the State.

Mersey Community Hospital Fund

The MCH Fund was created on 29 June 2017 as equity in TASCORP.  TASCORP manages the investments from 
these funds separately to its Treasury business. 

2024-25 Treasury 
$M

MCH Fund 
$M

Eliminations 
$M

Total 
$M

Net revenue from operations 43.3 11.1 (0.1) 54.3

Operational expenses (10.3) (0.1) 0.1 (10.3)

Profit before income tax equivalents 33.0 11.0 - 44.0

Income tax equivalent expense (9.9) - - (9.9)

Profit after income tax equivalents 23.1 11.0 - 34.1

Business line assets 16,134.5 127.0 (41.2) 16,220.3

Business line liabilities 16,061.4 - (41.2) 16,020.2

Net assets 73.1 127.0 - 200.1

2023-24 Treasury 
$M

MCH Fund 
$M

Eliminations 
$M

Total 
$M

Net revenue from operations 36.6 13.3 (0.2) 49.7

Operational expenses (9.6) (0.2) 0.2 (9.6)

Profit before income tax equivalents 27.0 13.1 - 40.1

Income tax equivalent expense (8.1) - - (8.1)

Profit after income tax equivalents 18.9 13.1 - 32.0

Business line assets 12,305.5 215.4 (16.1) 12,504.8

Business line liabilities 12,236.6 - (16.1) 12,220.5

Net assets 68.9 215.4 - 284.3

NOTE 3: Financial instruments and risk management (continued)
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Note 5: Revenues and expenses

(a) 	 Interest revenue and expense 

The following table shows the major categories of interest-bearing assets and liabilities and  
the amount of the interest revenue and expense.

 

2024-25 
$M

2023-24 
$M

INTEREST REVENUE

Interest on financial assets

Client advances at amortised cost 4.6 4.7

Client advances at fair value through profit or loss 415.9 278.5

Investments at amortised cost (MCH Fund) 7.3 12.2

Cash and investments at fair value through profit or loss 176.2 179.8

Derivatives - -

Total interest revenue 604.0 475.2

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest on financial liabilities

Deposits 29.3 27.6

Fixed Rate bonds at amortised cost 4.4 4.3

Fixed Rate bonds at fair value through profit or loss 407.0 283.0

Floating Rate notes at fair value through profit or loss 22.2 21.5

Commercial paper 87.2 81.4

Euro commercial paper 12.7 1.0

Other bonds 0.1 0.1

Derivatives 7.0 15.5

Total interest expense 569.9 434.4

(b) 	 Net gains/(losses) arising from financial instruments

2024-25 
$M

2023-24 
$M

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Client advances at fair value through profit or loss 302.7 26.3

Investments at amortised cost 0.0 0.1

Cash and investments at fair value through profit or loss 18.6 2.1

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Deposits (15.7) (9.2)

Fixed Rate bonds (303.0) (27.2)

Floating Rate notes 1.6 2.0

Commercial paper (1.7) (2.0)

Euro Commercial paper (15.1) (3.2)

Other bonds (0.1) -

Derivative financial instruments at fair value through 
profit or loss 31.7 18.9

Total net gains/(losses) arising from financial 
instruments 19.0 7.8

Credit loss allowance 0.1 0.1

(c) 	 Other revenue

2024-25 
$M

2023-24 
$M

Advisory and commitment fees 1.1  1.0

Other revenue 1.1 1.0 
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Note 6: Operational expenses

2024-25 
$M

2023-24 
$M

BORROWING COSTS

Program and debt issuance fees 2.0 2.2

Rating agency fees 0.6 0.6

Bank and facility fees 0.2 0.2

2.8 3.0

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Salaries and related employee expenses 4.6 4.4

Information technology and communication1 2.0 1.3

Legal, audit and professional services 0.4 0.4

Premises1 0.4 0.4

International travel2 0.0 0.0

Other expenses 0.1 0.1

7.5 6.6

Operational expenses 10.3 9.6

1  	 Information technology and communication and Premises includes amortisation of $173,000  
(2023-24: $140,000), depreciation of $118,000 (2023-24: $121,000) and a loss on disposal of fixed 
assets of $45,000 (2023-24: $nil).

2  	 The CEO and Senior Manager Financial Markets and Client Services undertook one international trip to 
promote and market TASCORP bonds and commercial paper to international investors in 2024-25 at 
the cost of $23,000, (2023-24: $25,000).

Note 7: Income tax equivalent expense

The Corporation’s tax equivalent liability is calculated in accordance with the Treasurer’s 
Instructions issued under the Government Business Enterprises Act 1995, which requires the 
Corporation to account for income tax based on the accounting profit on its treasury activities, 
but excludes the profit from the MCH Fund.			 

2024-25 
$M

2023-24 
$M

MCH Fund profit before income tax (exempt from 
taxation) 11.0 13.1

Treasury profit before income tax equivalent expense 33.0 27.0

Prima facie tax at 30% of Treasury profit 9.9 8.1

Income tax equivalent expense 9.9 8.1

Current tax liability 9.9 8.1

Note 8: Cash and cash equivalents

All Treasury investments are designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and 
MCH Fund investments at amortised cost. The majority of deposits from participating authorities 
and unallocated borrowings were invested in the following range of instruments as at balance 
date, all with original maturities of three months or less:

2025 
$M

2024 
$M

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Cash at bank and at hand 115.6 31.7

Deposits with financial institutions1 125.5 122.1

Short-term discount securities 45.0 -

Reverse repurchase agreements 108.1 30.1

394.2 183.9

1  Includes cash collateral of $89.2 million (2024: $114.0 million).
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Note 9: Investments

Investments include liquid securities and deposits with financial institutions as at balance date 
with original maturities longer than three months.

2025 
$M

2024 
$M

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Floating rate securities 959.0 998.4

Discount securities 1,585.6 1,034.8

Fixed interest securities1 613.8 505.9

Deposits with financial institutions 434.2 443.1

3,592.6 2,982.2

INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST (MCH FUND)

Floating rate securities 55.2 99.5

Fixed interest securities 31.4 105.8

Deposits with financial institutions 41.2 16.1

Credit loss allowance (0.1) (0.2)

127.7 221.2

3,720.3 3,203.4

 

The fair value of the MCH Fund assets is $127.7 million.

1  Includes securities sold under agreements to repurchases, $75.1 million (2024: $nil).

CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCE FOR INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 

 Floating  Fixed  Total 

 12-month expected credit losses 0.0 0.1 0.1

 Lifetime expected credit loss - - -

0.0 0.1 0.1

 
The lifetime expected credit loss provision reflects instruments where credit risk has increased 
significantly since initial recognition but are not credit impaired financial assets. There was no 
brought forward allowance.

Note 10: Client advances

Section 11 of the Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation Act 1985, states that one of the functions 
of the Corporation is to provide loans to participating authorities in the State of Tasmania. Normally, 
most advances are refinanced. 90.2% of total  advances are guaranteed by the State (2024, 89.5%), 
with 41.2% of these now covered under Section 15A of the Act, which commenced on 1 July 2023 
(2024, 44.8%), enabling the Government to guarantee advances to ‘relevant organisations’ as 
defined in Schedule 1 of the Act, with the residual 49.0% being loans advanced directly to the State 
Government itself, (2024, 44.7%).

 

2025 
$M

2024 
$M

CLIENT ADVANCES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Aurora Energy - 0.0

Department of Treasury and Finance 5,880.9 4,037.0

Homes Tasmania 488.4 266.9

Hydro Electric Corporation 1,011.6 746.4

Local Government 97.3 112.6

Tasmania Development and Resources 94.2 78.3

Tasmanian Irrigation Pty Ltd 31.3 18.9

Tasmanian Networks Pty Ltd 2,153.2 2,094.5

Tasmanian Ports Corporation 129.7 131.6

Tasmanian Railway Pty Ltd 19.1 11.0

Tasmanian Water and Sewerage Corporation Pty Ltd 1,084.5 832.8

TT-Line Company Pty Ltd 916.2 580.8

Other Participating Authorities 8.0 8.7

11,914.4 8,919.5

CLIENT ADVANCES AT AMORTISED COST

Tasmanian Networks Pty Ltd 100.8 100.8

100.8 100.8

Client advances 12,015.2 9,020.3
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The fair value of the amortised client advances is $84.5 million comprising Tasmanian Networks 
Pty Ltd. The client advances (Tasmanian Networks Pty Ltd) maturing in 2046 were valued using 
the longest observable TASCORP and Semi-government security market rates, extrapolated over 
time and allowed for change in credit margin. It is considered a level 2 valuation.

Note 11: Asset derivative financial instruments

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2025 
$M

2024 
$M

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RECEIVABLE  
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Foreign exchange contracts 0.2 1.8

Interest rate swaps 88.6 109.3

88.8 111.1

Note 12: Deposits

Section 11 of the Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation Act 1985, states that one of the 
functions of the Corporation is to accept money on deposit or on loan from the Treasurer or from 
a participating authority.  All outstanding deposits at balance date are designated as financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

2025 
$M

2024 
$M

DEPOSITS

State of Tasmania 615.6 599.7

Public trading entities 52.6 74.1

Local Government 13.4 9.7

Banks and other financial institutions1 1.1 -

682.7 683.5

1 Includes cash collateral of $1.1m (2024: $nil).

Note 13: Borrowings

All borrowings are unconditionally guaranteed by the State of Tasmania under Section 15 of the 
Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation Act 1985 and are designated as financial liabilities at fair 
value through the profit or loss.			    	

2025 
$M

2024 
$M

BORROWINGS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Fixed Rate bonds 12,340.1 8,843.6

Floating Rate notes 501.2 503.0

Commercial paper 1,951.8 1,948.5

Euro commercial paper 241.6 -

Other bonds 3.3 3.2

15,038.0 11,298.3

BORROWINGS AT AMORTISED COST

Fixed Rate bonds 100.8 100.8

Borrowings 15,138.8 11,399.1

The fair value of the amortised borrowings is $84.2 million (see Note 9 and Note 10 for valuation of 
amortised investments and client advances). The methodology used is consistent with that used 
when executing the transactions. Those funding the investments are a Level 1 valuation whilst 
those funding the long-dated client advances are a Level 2 valuation.

The Corporation issues bonds that pay a fixed interest semi-annual coupon with varying 
maturities:			 

•	 3.25% with a maturity of 19 February 2026			

•	 3.25% with a maturity of 24 January 2028			

•	 2.00% with a maturity of 24 January 2030

•	 4.75% with a maturity of 21 January 2031				  

•	 2.25% with a maturity of 22 January 2032			 

•	 2.50% with a maturity of 21 January 2033	

•	 4.00% with a maturity of 20 January 2034

•	 4.75% with a maturity of 25 January 2035

•	 1.75% with a maturity of 22 January 2036	  						    

•	 5.25% with a maturity of 23 January 2036		

•	 2.35% with a maturity of 23 August 2041			 

•	 4.35% with a maturity of 2 May 2046			 

NOTE 10: Client advances (continued)
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The Corporation also issues a bond that pays a floating interest quarterly coupon with a maturity of 
10 January 2029.

Domestic commercial paper is issued under a $2,500 million program with maturities of up to 364 
days. Overseas commercial paper is issued under a US$2,500 million program with maturities of up 
to 364 days.

Note 14: Liability derivative financial instruments

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2025 
$M

2024 
$M

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS PAYABLE AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Foreign exchange contracts 10.0 1.8

Interest rate swaps 99.3 140.1

109.3 141.9

Note 15: Contingent liabilities and commitments

The Corporation incurs contingent liabilities as part of its general function to engage in activities 
relating to the finances of the Tasmanian public sector as is prescribed by its enabling legislation 
and approved by the Treasurer. The contingent liabilities incurred take the form of the provision of 
guarantees, indemnities, forward contracts and commitments to extend credit.

Indemnities have been provided by the Corporation to third parties involved either directly or 
indirectly in financing arrangements with the Corporation or participating authorities and relate to 
financial advantages which are expected to be available to those parties or to the preservation of 
existing financial advantages.

The Corporation has commitments to extend standby credit facilities (including undrawn facilities) 
and has provided contract performance guarantees at balance date, details of which are as follows:

(a) 	 Client advances not yet drawn

    	 Client advances not yet drawn totalled $nil as at 30 June 2025 (2024: $nil).

(b) 	 Committed standby facilities

	 The Corporation enters into standby facilities with its clients. As at 30 June 2025 		
	 committed standby facilities totalled $125 million. (2024: $125 million).

(c) 	 Client guarantee accounts

	 The Corporation has provided contract performance guarantees. As at the balance date,  
	 the face value exposure of the guarantees is $287.7 million (2024: $295.7 million).

(d) 	 Client committed loan redraw facilities

	 The Corporation enters into redraw facilities with its clients. As at 30 June 2025 	
	 committed loan redraw facilities totalled $250 million (2024: $250 million).

Note 16: Receivables

2025 
$M

2024 
$M

AT AMORTISED COST

Unsettled transactions receivable - -

Debtors and prepayments 0.2 0.3 

0.2 0.3 

NOTE 13: Borrowings (continued)
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Note 17: Plant and equipment

2025 
$M

2024 
$M

Plant and equipment at cost 0.1 0.3

Less: Accumulated depreciation (0.1) (0.2)

Carrying value - 0.1

Leasehold improvements at cost 1.0 1.0

Less: Accumulated depreciation (0.4) (0.3)

Carrying value 0.6 0.7

Right of use assets 1.5 1.9

Less: Accumulated depreciation (0.5) (0.8)

Carrying value 1.0 1.1

Total plant and equipment, leasehold improvements 
and right of use assets at cost 2.6 3.2

Less: Accumulated depreciation (1.0) (1.3)

Total carrying value 1.6 1.9

Reconciliation of movement in plant and equipment,  
leasehold improvements and right of use assets

2024-25 
$M

2023-24 
$M

Opening balance 1.9 2.2

Right of use asset (0.4) -

Purchases - -

Depreciation1 (0.3) (0.3)

Accumulated depreciation on disposal 0.4 -

Loss on disposal 0.0 -

Closing balance 1.6 1.9

1 Depreciation for 2024-25 was $290,000 (2023-24: $261,000).

Note 18: Payables

2025 
$M

2024 
$M

At amortised cost

Creditors, accrued expense and pre paid revenue 0.3 0.4

Unsettled transactions 1.7 1.1

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 75.1 -

Staff expenses accrued 0.3 0.3

Lease liability 1.5 1.6

78.9 3.4

Reconciliation of movement in Lease Liability

2024-25 
$M

2023-24 
$M

Opening Balance 1.6 1.7

Lease Liability 0.1 0.1

Interest (0.0) (0.0)

Lease repayments (0.2)  (0.2)

Closing Balance 1.5 1.6
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Note 19: Provisions

2025 
$M

2024 
$M

Employee entitlements 0.6  0.6 

0.6  0.6 

Current liability 0.5  0.5 

Non-current liability 0.1  0.1 

0.6  0.6 

Note 20: Reconciliation of statement of cash flows

(a)	 Cash flows arising from the following activities are presented on a net basis in the 		
	 Statement of Cash Flows:

	 (i) Client advances – advances to and repayments by borrowing clients 
	 (ii) Investments – maturing investments and the purchase of new investments by the Corporation	 
	 (iii) Deposits from clients – deposits from and withdrawals by depositing clients 
	 (iv) Borrowings – proceeds from short-term borrowings and repayments by the Corporation

(b) �	 For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash 	equivalents comprise 		
	 the following at 30 June 2025

2025 
$M

2024 
$M

Cash at bank and at hand 115.6 31.7

Deposits with financial institutions 125.5 122.1

Short-term discount securities 45.0 0.0

Reverse repurchase agreements 108.1 30.1

394.2 183.9

(c) �	 Reconciliation of profit after income tax equivalent expense to net 		
	 cash flow provided by/(used in) operating activities: 

2024-25 
$M

2023-24 
$M

Profit after income tax equivalent expense 34.1 32.0

Depreciation and amortisation 0.3 0.3

(Profit)/loss on sale of plant and equipment 0.0 -

Unrealised (profit)/loss on financial instruments (69.4) 204.1

(Increase)/decrease in derivatives receivable/payable 10.3 (1.7)

(Increase)/decrease in receivables 0.1 0.0

Increase/(decrease) in payables, accrued expenses, provisions 75.5 (149.3)

(Increase)/decrease in client advances (2,633.7) (2,270.4)

(Increase)/decrease in investments (581.1) 368.2

Increase/(decrease) in deposits (16.0) 1.9

Increase/(decrease) in short-term borrowings 315.2 (165.2)

Net cash flow provided by/(used in) operating 
activities (2,864.7) (1,980.1)

(d) 	 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities 

Closing 
balance 

30/06/2024 Cash flows

Non cash 
flows 

fair value 
changes

Closing 
balance 

30/06/2025

Long-term bonds 8,944.4 3,097.3 399.2 12,440.9

Closing 
balance 

30/06/2023 Cash flows

Non cash 
flows 

fair value 
changes

Closing 
balance 

30/06/2024

Long-term bonds 7,342.1 1,956.2 (353.9) 8,944.4
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Note 21: Auditors’ remuneration

Included in administration costs are the following amounts received or due and receivable by the external 
auditors for services provided in the respective years.

2024-25
$000

2023-24
$000

Auditing the financial statements 156 148

Note 22: Key management personnel compensation 

The aggregate compensation to key management personnel of the Corporation is set out below:

DIRECTOR  
REMUNERATION

EXECUTIVE  
REMUNERATION

CONSOLIDATED 

2024-25 
$000

2023-24 
$000

2024-25 
$000

2023-24 
$000

2024-25
$000

2023-24 
$000

Short-term 
employee benefits

345 285 1,427 1,360 1,772 1,645

Post-employment 
benefits

31 29 148 133 179 162

Other long-term 
benefits

- - (60) (112) (60) (112)

Termination Benefits - - 25 164 25 164

376 314 1,540 1,545 1,916 1,859

For Director remuneration, Short-term employment benefits includes Director fees, Committee fees and other 
benefits. Post-employment benefits represents superannuation contributions. Short-term employee benefits 
include any fees paid to the Department of Treasury and Finance during the period for Mr A Ferrall’s role as 
Director and Chair (see note 4), and Mr G Swain’s role as Director and Chair (see note 5).

For Executive remuneration, Short-term employment benefits includes Salary, Other monetary benefits, Vehicle 
benefits and Other non-monetary benefits. Post-employment benefits represents superannuation contributions 
and Long-term employee benefits includes leave movements. Termination benefits are as provided below.

Remuneration for the Board of Directors

The following tables disclose the remuneration details for each person that acted as a Director during the 
current and previous financial year:

2024-25 Director Remuneration1

Name Position Period Director fees 
$000

Committee 
Fees $000

Other Benefits2 
000

Superannuation3 
$000

Total 
$000

Non-Executive Directors

Mr A Ferrall4 Chair To 02/06/25 110 - - 13 123

Ms S Birkensleigh Director Full term 56 - - 6 62

Ms S Collier Director Full term 56 - - 6 62

Mr D Sietsma Director Full term 56 - - 6 62

Mr G Swain5 Director
From 
01/07/24 to 
02/06/25

- - - - -

Mr G Swain5 Chair From 
03/06/25 - - - - -

Total 278 - - 31 309

2023-24 Director Remuneration1

Name Position Period Director  
fees $000

Committee 
Fees $000

Other Benefits2 
$000

Superannuation3 
$000

Total 
$000

Non-Executive Directors

Mr A Ferrall4 Chair Full term 99 - - 11 110

Ms S Birkensleigh Director Full term  55 - -  6  61 

Ms S Collier Director Full term  55 - -  6  61 

Mr D Sietsma Director Full term  55 - -  6  61 

Total  264 - -  29 293
 
Board remuneration notes and statements

1	 Amounts are all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided by the entity, i.e. disclosure is made on an accruals 
basis as at 30 June.

2	 Directors do not receive any other monetary benefits, but they are entitled to reimbursement of expenses incurred 
whilst attending to the Corporation’s business.		

3	 Superannuation means the contribution to the superannuation fund of the individual.

4	 Mr A Ferrall was a Crown Servant until 25/08/23 and was not directly remunerated for his role on the Board prior to 
this date. This remuneration was instead paid to the Department of Treasury and Finance (2024-25: $nil, 2023-24: 
$20,564). Post this date Mr A Ferrall was compensated directly in his role as a Non-Executive Director and Chair of the 
Board, independent of the Department of Treasury and Finance.

5	 As a Crown Servant, Mr G Swain is not directly remunerated for his role on the Board. The remuneration is instead paid 
to the Department of Treasury and Finance (2024-25: $66,543, 2023-24: $nil). 	  	  	  	  

NOTE 22: Key management personnel compensation (continued)
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Non-Executive Directors 

Non-Executive Directors are appointed by the Governor-in-Council on the recommendation of the Treasurer. 
Each instrument of appointment is for a maximum period of three years and prescribes the relevant 
remuneration provisions. Directors can be re-appointed in accordance with the relevant Guidelines for 
Tasmanian Government Businesses - Board Appointments. The level of fees paid to Non-Executive Directors 
is administered by the Department of Premier and Cabinet, as is additional fees paid in respect of their work on 
Board committees. Non-Executive Directors do not receive any other benefits.

Superannuation is paid at the appropriate rate as prescribed by superannuation guarantee legislation.  
No other leave, termination or retirement benefits are accrued or paid to Directors. Directors are entitled to 
reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred while attending to Board business. Non-Executive Directors’ 
remuneration is reviewed periodically with increases subject to approval by the Treasurer.

Executive Remuneration

The following tables disclose the remuneration details for each person that acted as a senior executive during 
the current and previous financial year:

2024-25 Executive Remuneration

Name 
Position Period
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Mr H Baker 
Chief Executive Officer Full year 367 n/a - n/a - 30 397 2 - 399

Ms E Breward 
Senior Manager, 
Corporate Services and 
Governance

Full year 225 n/a 1 n/a - 29 255 (1) - 254

Mr F Chowdhury 
Chief Financial  
Risk Officer

Full year 277 n/a 1 n/a - 30 308 6 - 314

Mr J Millen 
Senior Manager,  
Financial Markets and 
Client Services

To 20/06/25 252 n/a 27 n/a - 29 308 (73) 25 260

Mr A Freshney 
Chief Financial Officer Full year 276 n/a 1 n/a - 30 307 6 - 313

Total 1,397 n/a 30 n/a - 148 1,575 (60) 25 1,540

2023-24 Executive Remuneration

Name 
Position Period
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Mr H Baker 
Chief Executive Officer Full year  353  n/a  -  n/a  - 27  380 (1) -  379 

Ms E Breward 
Senior Manager, 
Corporate Services and 
Governance

Full year 217 n/a 1 n/a - 27 245 12 - 257

Mr F Chowdhury 
Chief Financial  
Risk Officer

Full year 271 n/a 1 n/a - 27 299 6 - 305

Mr J Millen 
Senior Manager,  
Financial Markets and 
Client Services

Full year 250 n/a 14 n/a - 27 291 12 - 303

Mr I Welch 
Chief Financial Officer

To 
29/12/23 150 n/a - n/a - 14 164 (152) 164 176

Mr A Freshney 
Chief Financial Officer

From 
12/02/24 103 n/a - n/a - 11 114 11 - 125

Total 1,344 n/a 16 n/a - 133 1,493 (112) 164 1,545

 
Executive remuneration notes and statements

Amounts are all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided by the entity, i.e. disclosure is made on an 
accruals basis and includes all accrued benefits at 30 June.

1	 Salary includes all forms of consideration paid and payable for services rendered, compensated absences during the 
period and salary sacrifice amounts.		

2	 The Corporation does not make any short-term incentive payments.				  

3	 Other monetary benefits include contributions towards professional membership fees with a total value of less than 
$1,000, as well as salary sacrifice amounts used for novated lease payments (reportable but exempt fringe benefit 
relating to electronic vehicle leasing arrangements).			 

4	 No vehicles were provided as part of remuneration.		

5	 No Other non-monetary benefits were provided as part of remuneration (noting that novated lease fringe benefits 
relating to electric vehicles are exempt from fringe benefits tax).

6	 Superannuation means the contribution paid or payable to the superannuation fund of the individual.	

7	 Reported Remuneration includes the individual’s salary, short-term incentive payments, other monetary benefits, 
vehicle benefits, other non-monetary benefits and superannuation. For the purposes of assessing compliance 
with the Guidelines, Other long-term employee benefits and termination benefits are not included in the Reported 
Remuneration amount.

NOTE 22: Key management personnel compensation (continued)

TASCORP ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025 71 TASCORP ANNUAL REPORT 2024-202570 



NOTE 22: Key management personnel compensation (continued)

8	 Other long-term benefits include movements in annual leave accruals and long service leave provisions.

9	 Termination benefits include all forms of benefit paid or accrued as a consequence of termination, including leave 
entitlements paid out on termination. 

Executive Remuneration 

Remuneration levels for key management personnel are set in accordance with the Director and Executive 
Remuneration Guidelines, dated October 2015. Under these Guidelines, remuneration bands for Chief Executive 
Officers (CEOs) are determined by the Government Business Executive Remuneration Panel, reflect the 
principles outlined in the Guidelines, and broadly align with State Service Heads of Agency. Positioning within 
the bands depends on the complexity and size of the business and the environment in which the business 
operates. Remuneration for other senior executives is set with reference to the CEO’s salary. 

The CEO is appointed by the Premier and Treasurer following selection and recommendation by the Board, 
including the consideration of the CEO’s remuneration package.		

The employment terms and conditions of senior executives are contained in individual employment contracts, 
which prescribe total remuneration, superannuation, annual and long service leave, vehicle and salary sacrifice 
provisions. In addition to their salaries, TASCORP also provides non-monetary benefits and contributes to post-
employment superannuation plans on their behalf.

The performance of each senior executive, including the CEO, is reviewed annually which includes a review of 
their remuneration package. The terms of employment of the CEO and the Board contain a termination clause 
that requires the CEO or the Board to provide a minimum notice period of up to 6 months prior to termination of 
the contract. The remaining senior executives are required to provide 1 month’s minimum notice. CEO contracts 
for GBEs include a set term consistent with the requirements of the Government Business Enterprises Act 1995. 
Whilst not automatic, contracts can be extended. No key management personnel appointed during the period 
received a payment as part of his or her consideration for agreeing to hold the position.

We have complied with the Guidelines for the Tasmanian Government Business - Director and Executive 
Remuneration.

Short-term incentive payments

TASCORP does not make any short-term incentive payments.

Termination benefits

Termination payments in the year reflect the payment of accrued annual leave and long service leave.

Acting Arrangements

When members of key management personnel are unable to fulfill their duties, consideration is given to 
appointing other members of senior staff to their position during their period of absence.

Individuals are considered members of key management personnel when acting arrangements are for more 
than a period of one month. 

Related Party Transactions	

There were no related party transactions.	

For all Tasmanian Government businesses, related parties are considered to include:	

•	 a subsidiary or joint venture; 	

•	 key management personnel or close family members of key management personnel;	

•	 Ministers or close family members of Ministers;	

•	 any entities controlled or jointly controlled by key management personnel or their close family 
members; and	

•	 any entities controlled or jointly controlled by Ministers or their close family members.	

Note 23: Related party information

The Corporation, as the central financing authority for the State of Tasmania, provides loans to 
and receives deposits from participating authorities. Details as at 30 June 2025 are set out in 
notes 10 and 12. All transactions are priced in accordance with the Corporation’s lending policy 
and deposit arrangements.

Note 24: Events occurring after balance date

The Corporation had no material or significant events occurring after the balance date.
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Certification statement

In the opinion of the Directors of the Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation:

(a) 	 the financial statements and notes of the Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation are in 				  
	 accordance with the Government Business Enterprises Act 1995, including:

	 i)	 giving a true and fair view of the results and cash flows for the financial year ended 30 			 
		  June 2025 and the financial position as at 30 June 2025, of the Tasmanian Public 			 
		  Finance Corporation; and

	 ii)	 subject to the Treasurer’s Instructions, complying with the Australian Accounting 			 
		  Standards and Interpretations.

(b)	 there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation will be 			 
	 able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

This declaration has been made after receiving the following declaration from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer of the Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation:

(a)	 the financial records of the Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation for the financial year ended 			 
	 30 June 2025 have been properly maintained in accordance with Section 51 of the Government 			 
	 Business Enterprises Act 1995;

(b)	 the financial statements and notes for the financial year ended 30 June 2025 have been 				 
	 prepared in accordance with Section 52 of the Government Business Enterprises Act 1995; and

(c) 	 the financial statements and notes for the financial year ended 30 June 2025 give a true and 			 
	 fair view. 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

G Swain 
Chair

S Birkensleigh 
Director

1

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Parliament

Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

I have audited the financial report of the Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation (the 
Corporation), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2025 and 
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash 
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and the statement of certification signed by the directors.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial report is in accordance with the Government 
Business Enterprises Act 1995, including: 

(a) giving a true and fair view of the Corporation’s financial position as at 30 June 2025 
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted the audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Report section of my report. I am independent of the Corporation in 
accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical 
Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including 
Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in 
Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The Audit Act 2008 further promotes the independence of the Auditor-General. The Auditor-
General is the auditor of all Tasmanian public sector entities and can only be removed by 
Parliament. The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate 
and is not subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be 
exercised. The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all 
documents and property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-
General’s opinion are significant.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 
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Emphasis of Matter

I draw attention to Note 1 (d) of the financial report, which describes the Corporation’s 
application of Treasurer’s Instruction GBE-08-52-09P in respect of the Mersey Community 
Hospital Fund. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most 
significance in my audit of the financial report of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of my audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming my 
opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Why this matter is considered to be one of the 
most significant matters in the audit

Audit procedures to address the 
matter included

Fair value of financial instruments not quoted in an active market

Refer to note 1(f), 1(h), 2, 3, 9, 10, 11, 13 and 14

The Corporation adopted fair value accounting 
for the majority of its financial instruments with 
certain limited exceptions carried at amortised 
cost. 

As at 30 June 2025, the Corporation recognised: 

• Investments of $3.72 billion. Of this, 
$3.59 billion were valued using a yield curve 
derived indirectly from observable market 
inputs. 

• Client advances of $12.01 billion. Of this, 
$11.91 billion was fair valued using discount 
rates which were derived indirectly from 
observable market inputs. 

• Derivative financial assets of $88.80 million 
and derivative financial liabilities of 
$109.3 million, were not quoted in an active 
market and were fair valued using the 
Overnight Index Swap curve, which was 
derived from observable market inputs. 

• Borrowings of $15.14 billion. Of this, $15.04 
billion included borrowings not quoted in an 
active market and valued using a yield curve 
derived indirectly from observable market 
inputs. 

In certain cases, mark-to-market valuation for 
financial instruments required significant 
judgement in the absence of prices quoted in an 
active market for identical financial instruments.

• Obtaining an understanding of the 
key processes and controls in place 
associated with management’s 
valuation of financial instruments. 

• Using an auditor valuation expert 
to test, on a sample basis, 
management’s valuation of the 
selected instruments. This process 
included assessing the valuation 
methodology, and testing the 
inputs used by management in the 
valuation for the different types of 
financial instruments as follows: 
o for level 1 financial instruments, 

agree the fair value to quoted 
market prices

o for level 2 financial instruments, 
testing the fair value by agreeing 
the inputs used by management 
to independent sources and 
independently re-performing 
the valuation calculation. 

• Assessing the appropriateness of 
the related disclosures within the 
financial report. 

3

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Corporation are responsible for the preparation of the financial report 
that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and the 
Government Business Enterprises Act 1995 and for such internal control as the directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and 
fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the 
Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
directors either intend to liquidate the Corporation or to cease operations, or have no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify my opinion. My conclusion is based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
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date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Corporation to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

I communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that I identify during my audit.

I also provide the directors with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where 
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, I determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial report of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, I determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication.

Stephen Morrison
Assistant Auditor-General
Delegate of the Auditor-General

6 August 2025
Hobart 
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Contact Details

Tasmanian Public Finance Corporation � 
Level 7, �1 Franklin Wharf �Hobart  
TAS 7000 Australia

GPO Box 1207,  
�Hobart TAS 7001 � 
Australia � 
ABN 75 403 768 119

T: (03) 8396 1200 / +61 3 8396 1200� 
F: (03) 9086 4195 / + 61 3 9086 4195� 
E: tascorp@tascorp.com.au� 
W: www.tascorp.com.au
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